
 

        Town of Charlotte  1 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 2 

Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference  3 

August 27, 2025 4 

  5 

DRAFT – subject to approval by the Development Review Board 6 

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis, 7 

Brando Tieso, Doug Paton.  8 

Staff: Rebecca Kaplan, Interim Zoning Administrator.    9 

OTHERS: Paul Plante, Frank Tenney, Claudia Mucklow, Jonathan Davis, Krystyna Davenport Brown, 10 

David Jeppsen, Carolyn Jeppsen.    11 

 12 

Posted Agenda:  13 

7:00 PM  Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)  14 

7:02 PM  Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)  15 

7:05 PM  DRB‐25‐119‐SD/SDA (PRD) Davis – public hearing - Two-lot subdivision and 16 

Subdivision Amendment at 250 Woodland Way  17 

7:30 PM  DRB‐25‐098‐CU Jeppsen –public hearing continued - Replacement of two cabins for one 18 

cabin at 39 Town Way  19 

7:40 PM  Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, August 6, 2025  20 

7:45 PM  Review & Approve Sketch Letter for: DRB 25‐025‐SK Rectified Whiskey  21 

8:00 PM  Review & Approve Draft Decisions (if any)  22 

8:15 PM  Deliberations on closed applications (if any)  23 

9:00 PM  Adjourn 24 

 25 

Call to Order/ changes to agenda:  26 

Chair, Charles Russell called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. Russell added a debrief from the 27 

August 20th Joint Meeting between the Development Review Board (DRB), Planning Commission, and 28 

Charlotte Conservation Commission at the end of the meeting if time permits.  29 

 30 

Public Comment:    31 

 None.  32 

 33 

DRB‐25‐119‐SD/SDA (PRD) Davis – public hearing - Two-lot subdivision and Subdivision 34 

Amendment at 250 Woodland Way:   35 

 Russell swore in Jonathan Davis, Krystyna Davenport Brown, and Claudia Mucklow.  36 

 Davis said that due to a land exchange with abutting property owners (Kerr), the application 37 

required a Planned Residential Development (PRD). As required with any PRD, 50% open space had 38 

been identified. No other changes since sketch plan review.  39 

 Alexa Lewis asked Davis what materials would be used for the driveway access road. Davis 40 

responded gravel top surface and noted where the road would meet Dorset St., the driveway access 41 

would be leveled and a culvert added for natural drainage. Davis could not speak with certainty about 42 

which material would be used for the base. Gerald Bouchard recalled that a previous applicant was 43 

asked to place material on base of the culvert. Davis agreed to this suggestion.  44 

 Brown commented that as an abutter she had received notice of the application in the mail but 45 

had not observed a posting outside of the applicant’s property. The DRB said adherence with posting 46 

requirements has been spotty. Brown asked that the absence of the posting to be officially noted. Brown 47 



page 2 Development Review Board 08/27/2025 
 

asked for clarification on frontage requirements. Russell explained that with PRDs, dimensional 48 

requirements can be waived. Brown then questioned whether the driveway access road would precede 49 

any other construction to ensure compliance with deed restrictions on Woodlawn Way. Davis confirmed 50 

that the Dorset St. access would be used.  51 

 MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Brandon Tieso, to close DRB‐25‐119‐SD/SDA 52 

(PRD) Davis. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried. 53 

   54 

DRB‐25‐098‐CU Jeppsen –public hearing continued - Replacement of two cabins for one cabin at 55 

39 Town Way:  56 

 Russell said a legal opinion had been obtained regarding the Federal Emergency Management 57 

Agency (FEMA) mapping of the Flood Hazard Overlay District. It was determined that Section 5.6 in 58 

the Land Use Regulations (LURs) is not applicable to the application. In addition, a Letter of Map 59 

Amendment (LOMA), to protect the town’s eligibility for lower insurance rates, is not needed.  60 

 Lewis asked about the two cedars that are slated to be cut and what types of trees would be 61 

planted to replace. Carolyn Jeppsen said the Tree Warden suggested diversification of native trees, 62 

specifically, by adding black cherry and shadbush, along with shrubs.  63 

Doug Paton asked about an inconsistency within the Staff Report regarding the number of trees 64 

to be removed: two versus five. Carolyn Jeppsen responded that she views the cedar as one tree, 65 

however if it needs to be classified as two, she would be fine with it. Gerald Bouchard agreed that it is 66 

likely one root system. Paton asked for clarification on the number of trees. Carolyn Jeppsen elaborated 67 

that the Tree Warden deemed five trees. Lewis added that Shoreland Protection viewed it as two trees. 68 

Carolyn Jeppsen offered to provide pictures for exhibit. Russell asked if the trees to be removed had 69 

been tagged. Carolyn Jeppsen responded that they had not. Carolyn Jeppsen said that she had offered to 70 

plant four trees in place of the two being removed. Brandon Tieso suggested the stipulation that the 71 

applicant follow the recommendations of the Tree Warden.  72 

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to close DRB‐25‐098‐CU 73 

Jeppsen. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried. 74 

 75 

Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, August 6, 2025:  76 

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the DRB meeting 77 

minutes for August 6, 2025, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.  78 

 79 

Review & Approve Sketch Letter for: DRB 25‐025‐SK Rectified Whiskey:  80 

 Lewis proposed changes and additions in five sections throughout the document. Lewis read her 81 

suggested edits from each section.  82 

Frank Tenney felt that the sketch letter was too specific. The intent is to direct an applicant in the 83 

right direction. Lewis felt that the idea is to provide the applicant with knowledge of what will be 84 

requested. Tenney then spoke to whether the sketch letter becomes appealable.  85 

Russell asked if anyone opposed Lewis’ edits. Bouchard felt hours of operation were 86 

unnecessary in this situation. Lewis agreed to withdraw that requested edit.  87 

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Alexa Lewis, to approve the Sketch 88 

Letter for DRB 25‐025‐SK Rectified Whiskey, as amended. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion carried. Doug 89 

Paton was recused and DRB alternate, Stuart Bennet, was not in attendance.  90 

 91 

Review & Approve Draft Decisions (if any):  92 

 93 

DRB‐25‐098‐CU Jeppsen: 94 

 Lewis had two questions regarding tree replacement. One being that the Shoreland Permit 95 

dictates that replacement trees be planted within 60 feet of the mean high-water level. Lewis asked if 96 



page 3 Development Review Board 08/27/2025 
 

that should be listed within the conditions of approval. The second question was should the size of the 97 

replacement trees be stipulated. Regarding Lewis’ first question, Russell suggested being more 98 

prescriptive, given replacement trees should be in proximity to the cabin. Russell proposed within 20 99 

feet on the lakeshore side of the cabin.  100 

Lewis then asked if consensus had been reached that four replacement trees would be required. 101 

Rebecca Kaplan responded that the Tree Warden deemed five. Which Lewis pointed out did not align 102 

with Shoreland Permit replacement requirements. Russell said the applicants agreed to four. Tieso 103 

reiterated his previous suggestion to defer to Tree Warden’s recommendations.  104 

Paton asked if a bathroom would be added to the new cabin. Russell confirmed that a bathroom 105 

is proposed and there is an existing pipe. Paton asked if it is the responsibility of the applicant to 106 

demonstrate the existence of plumbing. Russell responded that it is. Subsequent review of LURs to 107 

determine that the structure would not meet criteria for an Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) given the 108 

absence of a kitchen.  109 

 Lewis called attention to the recommendation made by the Tree Warden for diversification of 110 

native trees. Russell agreed that replacing cedars is the most practical. Lewis also asked to clarify that 111 

trees removed are replaced with trees. Shrubs would not count as a replacement tree.  112 

 Russell circled back to Paton’s question pertaining to an added bathroom. Paton said he feels that 113 

the decision should take a stance on whether the addition of a bathroom is allowed or not. Lewis 114 

questioned if LURs allowed the DRB to take a position given the new cabin would not be an ADU. 115 

Russell suggested a condition to note that the addition of plumbing would be permitted if an Indirect 116 

Discharge Permit allows. Paton agreed with the suggestion and pointed out that the documentation states 117 

that the current sleeping cabins are unplumbed yet have sinks. Paton proposed removing unplumbed 118 

from the description of the existing cabins.  119 

 Russell suggested that it be clarified that the application does not require review under Section 120 

5.6 in the LURs. To that point, Paton added, per legal opinion.  121 

 Tenney suggested a condition to specify that occupancy cannot be increased. Russell asked for a 122 

reference in LURs and felt the Indirect Discharge Permit was a cleaner approach.  123 

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the Draft Decision 124 

for DRB‐25‐098‐CU Jeppsen, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried. 125 

 126 

Deliberations on closed applications (if any):  127 

 128 

DRB‐25‐119‐SD/SDA (PRD) Davis:  129 

 Russell noted that the recommendation for the bottom of the culvert to be lined should be 130 

included in the draft decision.  131 

 Lewis added a condition for an open space agreement.  132 

 Tieso referenced Woodlawn Way access restrictions and proposed language to indicate that 133 

primary vehicle access is restricted to Dorset Street.  134 

 135 

Debrief on the August 21st Joint Meeting:  136 

 Russell said the Town Planner agreed with presenting a mock application to the Planning 137 

Commission and perhaps the exercise could occur outside of the quarterly Joint Meeting.  138 

 139 

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to adjourn the meeting. VOTE: 5 140 

ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 8:44pm.  141 

 142 

Minutes respectfully submitted: 143 

Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary  144 


